
 
 

Please ask for: 

Linda Coote 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

linda.coote@gosport.gov.uk 
 

6 October 2021 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Standards and Governance Committee 
DATE: 14 October 2021 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote 

 

 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

Councillor Blackman (Chairman) 
  

 

Councillor Ms Ballard 
Councillor Beavis 
Councillor Chegwyn 
Councillor Mrs Furlong 
Councillor Herridge 
Councillor Hylands 
 

Councillor Mrs Hook 
Councillor Mrs Huggins 
Councillor Murphy 
Councillor Pepper 
Councillor Scard 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 



Standards and Governance Committee 
14 October 2021 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of interest   

 All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.  
 

 

3.   Minutes of previous meeting held on 3rd August 2021 (Pages 5 - 
8) 

 

4.   Deputations - Standing Order 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Tuesday 12th October 2021) 
 

 

5.   Public Questions - Standing Order 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Tuesday 12th October 2021) 
 

 

6.   Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2021 (Pages 9 - 
14) 

 

 To advise the Committee of the Annual Review Letter 2021 received 
from the Local Government Ombudsman. 
 

 

7.   Corporate Risk Register (Pages 15 - 18)  

 To present the Corporate Risk register as at October 2021, in line 
with the Risk Management Policy. 
 

 

8.   Audit Progress Report 1st April to 20th September 2021 (Pages 
19 - 32) 

 

 To update the committee on the progress of the Audit Plan 2021/22, 
agreed (July 2021), to the Members with responsibility for 

 



Standards and Governance Committee 
14 October 2021 

 
 

governance. 
 

 

9.   Any Other Items   



Standards and Governance Committee 
3 August 2021 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
WAS HELD ON 3 AUGUST 2021 

 
 
 
 
Councillors Blackman, Ms Ballard, Beavis, Hylands, Murphy, Pepper and Scard 
 
 
43. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
The Chairman noted that due to ongoing concerns regarding Covid the Group Leaders 
agreed to reduce the number of Members in attendance. 
 
44. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED: That Councillor Alan Scard be elected as Vice Chairman of the Standards and 
Governance Committee for the municipal year 2021/22 
 
45. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none 
 
46. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the of the meeting held on 8th April 2021 be signed as a 
true and correct record. 
 
47. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
There were none 
 
48. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none 
 
49. GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY RETURN FOR COUNCIL STAFF  
 
It was agreed to take this report as Item 7 of the agenda 
 
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer seeking 
approval from the Committee for the Gifts and Hospitatlity declared by Council Staff for the 
period April 2019-March 2021, and advising of some minor typographical amendments to 
the Policy. 
 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the report and approved the policy. 
 
50. AUDIT PLANNING REPORT  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Standards and Governance Committee 
3 August 2021 

 

2 

Consideration was given to a report by Ernst & Young setting out the planned work to 
enable the issuing of the audit opinion on the financial statements and the value for money 
commentary for 2020/21. 
 
Members were advised that it was hoped to have brought this report to Committee in March 
before the year end, but delays in deadlines being moved due to Covid continued to impact 
the conduct of the audit. A target date of the end of September would not be achieved, but 
following discussions with finance it was hoped that October/November would be 
achievable with the timetable being back on track for the following year. 
 
Members were advised that there was a new area of audit in regard to the accounting of 
Covid Grant Income. 
 
Members were advised that there were changes in Value For Money requirements following 
the national Audit Office new code of practice. The Value For Money criteria are Financial 
Sustainability, Governance and Improving Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness. The key 
change will be seen in the commentary, which will be more valuable for the taxpayer, and 
can be published on the website. 
 
A Member stated that he had received excellent feedback from local busineses on the way 
the Council had dealt with Covid Grants and hoped this would not be an area of concern. 
Members were advised that the audit would focus on how the grants were accounted for 
and will not be sample testing criteria so would be unlikely to pick up if a grant falls outside 
of the parameters set. 
 
In answer to a Members question, the Auditors advised that there were significant 
increases in the amount of evidence required as a result of changes in the ISA 570 and that 
Officers would need to give more time to answering questions. 
 
Officers advised that two streams of accounting have been applied to Covid grants, that 
which has passed through the books and that which we have passed on as agents for the 
Government. The classification of what has and has not gone through the books will from 
part of the audit. 
 
In answer to a Members question regarding the opinion on Value For Money, the Auditors 
advised that they would be looking to see that the procedures were correct rather than the 
detail. A subjective judgement would not be made, but the questioning of Officers would 
determine if the arrangements were in place and if not it would be identified as a risk. 
 
 
 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee; 
 

 Reviewed the 2020/21 Audit Plan and noted the risks and areas of focus identified and the 
planned response to them  

 Recommended the Audit Planning Report 2020/21 to the Policy & Organisation Board. 

 
51. INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 2020/21  
 

Page 6



Standards and Governance Committee 
3 August 2021 

 

3 

Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Internal Auditor tabling the Annual Audit 
Opinion for 2020/21. 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor advised Members that there had been an increase in audits that 
met the Assurance and Reasonable Assurance levels, with improvement needed 
completing  follow up actions from previous reports.However it is understood that 
timescales have been pushed back by Covid. The one area of concern was the 
procurement audit. 
 
In answer to a Members question, officers advised that the Proactis system was perfectly 
adequate and robust and used in other Local Authorities. Training had taken place but 
needed to be refreshed and support given to those who use the system infrequently to help 
them gain confidence and understanding. Officers had not receive feedback that staff were 
having issues with the functionality of the system. 
 
Members were advised that developing a contract for minor works drawn down from a 
contract structure would make a marked improvement. 
 
Officers agreed that there may not be an issue with the software or training, just that users 
are not following the process, but the audit does not identify what the issue is and is only a 
statistical audit comparing procurement entries on Proactis against financial entries in the 
accounts. 
 
Members were advised that work on the Contract Procedure Rules had started in 
consultation with CIPFA and training on any changes would be carried out in the Autumn. 
 
Officers reassured Members again that the system was fit for purpose and addressing the 
cultural and behavioural issues, alongside further training and support would improve 
comprehension of the system. 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor suggested an action plan to understand where the issues are in 
order to rectify them. 
 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the Annual Audit Opinion for 2020/21 
 
52. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/21  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Internal Auditor seeking approval from 
Members in regard to the draft Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor advised Members that the Annual Governance Statement will go 
along with the Annual Accounts to the Policy & Organisation Board. 
 
In answer to a Members question, the Chief Internal Auditor advised that the lack of 
Counter Fraud would be given high priority, taken forward as soon as possible within the 
current financial year. 
 
Members recognised that members of the audit team had been seconded to assist with 
Covid related work, hence the delay. 
 

Page 7



Standards and Governance Committee 
3 August 2021 

 

4 

Members were advised that significant progress had been made regarding GDPR since the 
last audit and a follow up audit had seen improvements and putting in place of 
arrangements already in place elsewhere in the Partnership. 
 
Members were advised that the audit process had changed in as much as it was far more 
risk based now, and more issues were being identified because of this new approach. 
 
In answer to a Members question the Chief Internal Auditor explained that there was in 
place an audit universe tracking various auditable activities in the Council. Every year that 
is risk assessed following consultation  with Section Heads and Senior Management to see 
if there have been any changes. Audits are carried out on those with the higher scores and 
deemed high risk. Some are conducted annually, such as key financial systems while 
others aim to be covered once within a five year cycle. 
 
Members were advised that compliance to Contract Procedure Rules is low and they are 
being re-written in consultation with CIPFA. These had originally been revamped quickly 
when Proactis was introduced and once in place would be fit for purpose and ensure 
continued improvement. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee approved the draft Annual Governance Statement 
2020/21  
 
53. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 6.51 pm 

 
 

Page 8



8/1 
 

  
  

Board/Committee: STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE 

Date of meeting: 14 OCTOBER 2021 

Title: LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN: 
ANNUAL REVIEW 2021 

Author: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

Status:   FOR NOTING 

  
Purpose 
 
To advise the Committee of the Annual Review Letter 2021 received from the 
Local Government Ombudsman. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Committee note the report. 
  
1.0 Background 
  
1.1 The Local Government Ombudsman writes to all local authorities on an 

annual basis summarising the complaints about the authority which 
have been dealt with by the Ombudsman during the previous year 
ending 31 March. 

  
1.2 The Ombudsman’s Annual Review Letter for the year ended 31 March 

2021 is attached to this report as Appendix 1.  
  
2.0 Report 
  
2.1 The Ombudsman’s Team received three complaints and enquiries 

during 2020/21, one less than 2019/20 (figures for 2019/20 are shown 
in brackets). Of these, one was concerned with Highways and 
Transport (one), one with Housing Services (one), and one with 
Planning and Development (none). 

  
2.2 
 
  
 
 
 

During this period, one of the complaints received by the Ombudsman 
were closed after initial enquiries (one), one was signposted to 
complaint handling with advice given (none) and one was referred back 
for local resolution (none)  

2.3 The Ombudsman suspended investigations to complaints through the 
period of 30 March 2020 and June 2020 as a result of the pandemic.  

 
3.0 

 
Risk assessment 

  
3.1 It is important that the Council has an effective and robust Customer 

Complaints Procedure in place in order to minimise the instances of 
compensation being paid. 

  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



8/2 
 

4.0 Conclusion 
  
4.1 It is intended that this review be published on the Council’s website. 
  

 
 
 
 

Financial Services 
Comments : 

None 

Legal Services Comments : None 

Climate Change 
Implications  

None 

Crime and Disorder  None 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

None 

Corporate Plan: None 

Risk Assessment: See above 

Background papers: Local Government Ombudsman Complaint 
Statistics 

Appendix A: Local Government Ombudsman’s Annual 
Review 2020/21 

Report Author/Lead Officer: David Williams 

 
 

Page 10



 

 

 

 

21 July 2021 
 
By email 
 
Mr Williams 
Chief Executive 
Gosport Borough Council 
 
Dear Mr Williams 
 
Annual Review letter 2021 
 
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the decisions made by the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending                      

31 March 2021. At the end of a challenging year, we maintain that good public administration is 

more important than ever and I hope this feedback provides you with both the opportunity to reflect 

on your Council’s performance and plan for the future.  

You will be aware that, at the end of March 2020 we took the unprecedented step of temporarily 

stopping our casework, in the wider public interest, to allow authorities to concentrate efforts on 

vital frontline services during the first wave of the Covid-19 outbreak. We restarted casework in 

late June 2020, after a three month pause.  

We listened to your feedback and decided it was unnecessary to pause our casework again during 

further waves of the pandemic. Instead, we have encouraged authorities to talk to us on an 

individual basis about difficulties responding to any stage of an investigation, including 

implementing our recommendations. We continue this approach and urge you to maintain clear 

communication with us. 

Complaint statistics 

This year, we continue to focus on the outcomes of complaints and what can be learned from 

them. We want to provide you with the most insightful information we can and have focused 

statistics on three key areas: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find some form of fault in an authority’s 

actions, including where the authority accepted fault before we investigated.  

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for authorities to put things right 

when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations. 

Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.  

Page 11



Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the authority upheld the 

complaint and we agreed with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early resolution 

of complaints and credit authorities that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put things right.  

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your authority with similar types of 

authorities to work out an average level of performance. We do this for County Councils, District 

Councils, Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

Your annual data will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s performance, along with a 

copy of this letter on 28 July 2021. This useful tool places all our data and information about 

councils in one place. You can find the decisions we have made about your Council, public reports 

we have issued, and the service improvements your Council has agreed to make as a result of our 

investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.  

I would encourage you to share the resource with colleagues and elected members; the 

information can provide valuable insights into service areas, early warning signs of problems and 

is a key source of information for governance, audit, risk and scrutiny functions. 

As you would expect, data has been impacted by the pause to casework in the first quarter of the 

year. This should be considered when making comparisons with previous year’s data. 

Supporting complaint and service improvement  

I am increasingly concerned about the evidence I see of the erosion of effective complaint 

functions in local authorities. While no doubt the result of considerable and prolonged budget and 

demand pressures, the Covid-19 pandemic appears to have amplified the problems and my 

concerns. With much greater frequency, we find poor local complaint handling practices when 

investigating substantive service issues and see evidence of reductions in the overall capacity, 

status and visibility of local redress systems.  

With this context in mind, we are developing a new programme of work that will utilise complaints 

to drive improvements in both local complaint systems and services. We want to use the rich 

evidence of our casework to better identify authorities that need support to improve their complaint 

handling and target specific support to them. We are at the start of this ambitious work and there 

will be opportunities for local authorities to shape it over the coming months and years.  

An already established tool we have for supporting improvements in local complaint handling is 

our successful training programme. During the year, we successfully adapted our  

face-to-face courses for online delivery. We provided 79 online workshops during the year, 

reaching more than 1,100 people. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 12

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


Gosport Borough Council 

For the period ending: 31/03/21  

                                                             

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE: To allow authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, we did not accept new complaints and stopped 

investigating existing cases between March and June 2020. This reduced the number of complaints we received 

and decided in the 20-21 year. Please consider this when comparing data from previous years. 

Complaints upheld 

 

The Ombudsman carried out no detailed investigations during this period 

 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

 

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period 

 

 

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority 

 

The Ombudsman did not uphold any detailed investigations during this period 

 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 

To present the Corporate Risk register as at October 2021, in line with the Risk Management 
Policy. 
 

 

Recommendations 
 

The members note the corporate Risk Register as set out in Appendix A. 
 

 
1. Background & Purpose 

 

1.1 Risk is a fact of life in an ever changing landscape. By attempting to foresee and avert 
problems in the delivery of services and maximise opportunities, it helps ensure that 
resources are used in the best way possible. Risk management is a fundamental part of 
how we operate and forms part of our Corporate Governance Framework. 
 

1.2 This Policy and supporting Procedures are designed to support a risk culture, which is 
embedded in the way we work rather than having a process which itself is used to drive 
risk management 

 
1.3 As part of the Risk Policy, a Corporate Risk Register has been drafted to highlight the 

key corporate risks the Council is currently facing and how the Council mitigates against 
them. 

 
 

2. Report 
 

2.1       Appendix A is the corporate Risk Register as at October 2021. 
  

 
3. Conclusion 

 
3.1       That the Committee note the corporate Risk Register. 

 
 

Financial Services 
comments: 

Nil 

Legal Services comments: Nil 

Crime and Disorder: Nil 

Equality and Diversity: Nil 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

The delivery of the annual audit plan is a key function of the 
service. 

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through delivering 

Board/Committee: Standards and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 14 October 2021 

Title: Corporate Risk Register 

Author: Chief Internal Auditor 

Status: FOR NOTING 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



an effective and high quality governance evaluation and 
monitoring. 

Risk Assessment: Not to take this action would have potential legal, governance, 
and risk management implications for the Council 

Background papers: None 

Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix A – Corporate Risk Register 
 

Report author/ Lead Officer: Paul Somerset - Chief Internal Auditor 

 

Page 16



Date: Oct 2021

Risk Owner Risk Area

Risk 

Likelihood

Risk 

Impact

Risk 

Score Potential Outcome/consequences Who is at Risk Mitigation/Commentary/Control

Corporate

Loss of key staff, recruitment to key 

roles 3 3 9

Service failure may occur without key 

staff. Potential breach in legislation if 

sufficiently trained staff are not in certain 

roles

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Sucession Planning within teams. HR policies aimed 

at recruitment and retention. Links with PCC 

temporary register and Comensura. Developing use 

of Apprentices

Corporate

Exposure to system failure, 

including support expiry, single 

points of failure, cyber-security and 

system recovery. 3 5 15

Service failure, loss of data, fines from 

ICO. Unable to communicate with 

stakeholders causing significant risks 

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Disaster recovery plans in place. Contract with 

external party for recovery of systems should data 

centre or internet connection be lost. 

Corporate

Addressing underlying budget 

pressures and delivering effective 

and sustainable services 4 4 16

Reduction in services, reputational, not 

meeting objectives

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Spend to save initiatives. Taking a more commercial 

approach to generate income. Strong budget 

monitoring and reporting

Corporate

Failure to ensure the Borough 

Council’s information is held and 

protected in line with Information 

Governance policies and 

procedures. 2 4 8 Fines, reputational, litigation

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Ongoing actions being implemented following an 

internal audit review. Corporate information 

governance panel providing ownership at a 

corporate level to ensure information management 

is an ongoing practice

Corporate

Achiveing value for money via short 

and long time purchassing 

Procurement 5 3 15

Loss of funds, reduction in services, 

litigation, reputational

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Contract procedure rules have been redrafted to 

enhance the Council's procurement regulations and 

increase compliance. Further training will be 

provided to all relevant procuring staff. Ongoing 

compliance checks and interrgration of systems is 

being investigated

Corporate Covid Recovery 3 3 9

Service failure, reputational, financial 

pressures

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Utilise the recovery processes to highlight 

opportunities which may arise relating to efficiencies 

in the new ways of working

Corporate

Exposure to national level political 

and legislative change including 

impact on scope of duties, powers, 

responsibilities and service demand. 3 3 9

Financial pressures to adapt to any 

changes. Potential legislative breaches 

during any transitional periods

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Horizon scanning. Communication with relevant 

stakeholders

Risk Register Completed By: Risk Management Group

P
age 17



Risk Owner Risk Area

Risk 

Likelihood

Risk 

Impact

Risk 

Score Potential Outcome/consequences Who is at Risk Mitigation/Commentary/Control

Corporate Major incident disruption 2 4 8 Major service failure

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Business Continuity Plans and annual desktop 

exercise. Lessons learnt from the Covid 19 Pandemic. 

Corporate Project Delivery 4 4 16

Delays in project can affect the service 

while also cretaing a financial pressure to 

deal with issues arising. 

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Project Management skills have been acquired via 

employment. Further plans to develop a corporate 

project management approach which will be 

implemented and staff suitably trained.

Corporate

MaJor contract Management / 

Performance / Supply

2 4 8

Services provided may not be at level 

expected causing issues for GBC 

stakeholders. Could result in reputational 

issues from the public. Financial risk may 

also arise to rectify issues which have not 

been managed in key contracts

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Quarterly meetings to discuss performance and 

finance to identify potential issues early.  Sound 

governance arrangements. 

Corporate

Devolution / Local Government 

Reorganistion 1 5 5

Uncertainity in planning, managing a 

significant change while maintaining 

services

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Horizon scanning. Communication with relevant 

stakeholders

Corporate Property Management 4 3 12

Non utilisation of properties may not 

generate income for council as expected 

resulting in a financial pressures. 

Mismanagement may also result in 

higher maintenance costs causing a 

greater financial pressure

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

Engaged with PCC regarding purchasing specialist 

help with regards to management and expansion of 

the current property portfolio

Corporate Flooding 4 3 12

Environmental risks. Could cause 

financial pressures to rectify or manage. 

Reputational risk

Public, GBC 

staff, Partners

GBC work with Coastal partnerhsip on a number of 

initiatives regarding flood defences across the 

borough

P
age 18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 

To update the committee on the progress of the Audit Plan 2021/22, agreed (July 2021), to 
the Members with responsibility for governance. 

 
 

Recommendations 
 

a. That the Standards and Governance Committee note the progress of the Audit Plan 
2021/22 from 1st April 2021 - 20th September 2021. 
 
 

 
1. Background & Purpose 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Standards and Governance Committee with an 
overview of internal audit activity against assurance work completed in accordance with the 
approved internal audit plan. Members of this Committee approved the 2021/22 Annual Audit 
in July 2021 which consisted of 38 audit assignments initially.   

.  
 

 
 

2. Report 
 
2.1 Appendix A is the Audit Progress Report 1st April - 20th September 2021. 

  
 

 
3. Conclusion 

 
3.1 That the Committee note the Audit Progress against the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 

 
 

Financial Services 
comments: 

Nil 

Legal Services comments: Nil 

Crime and Disorder: Nil 

Equality and Diversity: Nil 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

The delivery of the annual audit plan is a key function of the 
service. 

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through delivering 
an effective and high quality governance evaluation and 

Board/Committee: Standards and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 14th October 2021 

Title: Audit Progress Report  1st April to 20th September 
2021 

Author: Chief Internal Auditor 

Status: FOR NOTING 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



monitoring. 

Risk Assessment: The work performed by Internal Audit assists in reducing the 
overall risk exposure in the Council’s operations and provides a 
high degree of assurance to management in placing reliance on 
the adequacy of internal controls within their Services 

Background papers: None 

Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix A – Audit Progress Report 1st April - 20th September 
2021 
 

Report author/ Lead Officer: Paul Somerset - Chief Internal Auditor 

 

Page 20



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Progress Report 14th October 2021 

Paul Somerset, Chief Internal Auditor 

 

P
age 21



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 2 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

1. I n t r o d u c t i o n   

 

Internal Audit is a statutory function for all local authorities.  

The requirement for an Internal Audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 as to: 

 

Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance 

 
The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards – updated 2016]. 

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 

organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 

and governance processes 

This report includes the status against the 2021/22 internal audit plan. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 22



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 3 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

2 .  A u d i t  P l a n  P r o g r e s s  a s  o f  2 0 t h  S e p t e m b e r  2 0 2 1  

 

There are 35 audits in the revised plan for 2021/22. 

To date, 8 (23%) have been issued, 2 (6%) are in draft report, 5 (14%) are work in progress and 20 (57%) are yet to be initiated.  

Since the last meeting, the internal audit team has lost an auditor and as such, the plan is not as complete as desired. However, we have successfully 

recruited a new auditor who is commencing in October.  

 

S t a t u s  A u d i t s  

Identified 20 

Fieldwork 5 

Draft Report 2 

Issued 8 
 

 
 
 

57% 

14% 

6% 

23% 

Audit Plan Progress as of 20th 
September 2021 

Identified

Fieldwork

Draft

Issued

P
age 23



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 4 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

3 .  O n g o i n g  I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  I n v o l v e m e n t /  C o v i d  u p d a t e   
 
COVID-19 
Gosport Borough Council moved to Business Critical services on the 18th March 2020, due to the Covid pandemic. Internal Audit staff were redeployed to 
aid the council in processing Business Grants and assisting in the Covid welfare work. Internal Audit began to recommence activities in early July 2020 
however staff were still undertaking Grant work and assisting in business recovery until July 2021 
The Senior Auditor had been redeployed to assist with the administration of the grants and while this redeployed has ended, time is spent advising 
colleagues in this area.  
 
 
Internal Audit has provided advice, ongoing reviews and involvement work in the following areas. (For reference, advice is only recorded when the time 
taken to provide the advice exceeds one hour): 
 

 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) - authorisations (if applicable) and policy review 

 Anti-Money Laundering - policy review 

 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to facilitate national data matching carried out by the Cabinet Office 

 National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) bulletins and intelligence follow up 

 Standards & Governance Committee - reporting and attendance  

 Audit Planning and Consultation 

 Risk Management & Annual Governance Statement  
 

 
 

4 .  A u d i t  P l a n  S t a t u s / C h a n g e s  
 

As noted in section 3, Internal Audit resourcing has been reduced due to a vacancy within the service. As a result, the following audits, in agreement with 

the s151 officer, have been deferred from the 2021/22 plan until 2022/23.  

 IT purchasing 

 Housing Maintenance 

 Housing Lettings 

P
age 24



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 5 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

5 .  A r e a s  o f  C o n c e r n   
 

No new areas of concern 

 

6. A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l s  
 

Internal Audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management, control and 

governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives for the area under review. 

 

Audits rated No Assurance are specifically highlighted to the Governance and Audits and Standards Committee 
along with any Director’s comments. The Committee is able to request any director attends a meeting to 

A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  /  E x a m p l e s  

Assurance 
No issues or minor improvements noted within the audit but based on the testing conducted, assurance can be placed 
that the activity is of low risk to the Authority 

Reasonable Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified but overall the activities do not pose significant risks to the Authority 

Limited Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified which pose a more significant risk to the Authority 

No Assurance 
Major individual issues identified or collectively a number of issues raised which could significantly impact the overall 
objectives of the activity that was subject to the Audit 

NAT No areas tested 

P
age 25



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 6 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

discuss the issues. 

 

7 .  E x c e p t i o n  R i s k  R a n k i n g  
 

The following table outline the exceptions raised in audit reports, reported in priority order and are broadly equivalent to those previously used. 

 

 

Any critical exceptions found the will be reported in their entirety to the Governance and Audits and Standards Committee along 
with Director’s comments 

P r i o r i t y  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Low Risk 
(Improvement) 

Very low risk exceptions or recommendations that are classed as improvements that are intended to help the service fine tune its control 
framework or improve service effectiveness and efficiency.  An example of an improvement recommendation would be making changes to a filing 
system to improve the quality of the management trail.  

Medium Risk These are control weaknesses that may expose the system function or process to a key risk but the likelihood of the risk occurring is low.  

High Risk 

Action needs to be taken to address significant control weaknesses but over a reasonable timeframe rather than immediately.  These issues are 
not ‘show stopping’ but are still important to ensure that controls can be relied upon for the effective performance of the service or function.  If 
not addressed, they can, over time, become critical.  An example of an important exception would be the introduction of controls to detect and 
prevent fraud.  

Critical Risk 
Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon not only the system function or process objectives but also the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives in relation to: The efficient and effective use of resources, The safeguarding of assets, The preparation of reliable financial and 
operational information, Compliance with laws and regulations and corrective action needs to be taken immediately. 

P
age 26



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 7 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

8 .   2 0 2 0 / 2 1  A u d i t s  c o m p l e t e d  t o  d a t e  ( 2 0 t h  S e p t e m b e r  2 0 2 1 )  
Council Tax and NNDR - Finance  

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 5 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance  

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by December 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Reasonable Assurance  

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data Assurance  
 

The 5 medium risk exceptions relate to a lack of write off reconciliation, lack of reviews in relation to various discounts, lack of dedicated work on arrears, 

lack of contract with bailiff companies and lack of resilience within the service.   

 

Corporate Complaints - Executive 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 2 2 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance    

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by November 2021 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

The 2 medium risk exceptions relate to a lack of procedures and templates to ensure consistency in approach to corporate complaints and complaints 

exceeding the stated times for a response. 

 

P
age 27



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 8 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

Housing Benefits - Finance 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 0 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Assurance 

 
 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

No exceptions were noted. 

 

Voids - Housing 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 0 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Assurance  

 
 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  NAT  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Assurance  

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

No exceptions were noted. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 28



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 9 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

Website Compliance Accessibility - Executive 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 1 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance   

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by March 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations NAT 

Safeguarding of Assets NAT 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

The medium risk relates to a current lack of action plan to resolve any non compliance to accessibility regulations on GBC's websites. 

 

Purchase Cards - Finance 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 0 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Assurance   

 
 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations NAT 

Safeguarding of Assets Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data NAT 
 

No exceptions were noted. 

 

 

 

Rough Sleeping Initiative - Grant Sign off 

P
age 29



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 10 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

Grant was signed off as being in compliance with the grant conditions.   

 

9 .  F o l l o w - u p  A c t i o n  C a t e g o r i s a t i o n  

 
The following table outlines the follow up categories used to describe the outcome of follow up testing completed. 
 

F o l l o w  U p  C a t e g o r i e s  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Open No action has been taken on agreed action.  

Pending Actions cannot be taken at the current time but steps have been taken to prepare.  

In Progress Progress has been made on the agreed action however they have not been completed. 

Implemented but not Effective Agreed action implemented but not effective in mitigating the risk. 

Closed: Verified Agreed action implemented and risk mitigated, verified by follow up testing. 

Closed: Not Verified Client has stated action has been completed but unable to verify via testing. 

Closed: Management Accepts 
Risk 

Management has accepted the risk highlighted from the exception. 

Closed: No Longer Applicable Risk exposure no longer applicable.  

P
age 30



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 11 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

 

1 0 .  2 0 2 1 / 2 2  F o l l o w - u p  A u d i t s  t o  d a t e  ( 2 0 t h  S e p t e m b e r  2 0 2 1 )  

 
GDPR - Executive   

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 4 4 2 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in March 2020. 

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance Level 

Limited Assurance  Reasonable Assurance 
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0  0 7 (2 high, 3 
medium, 2 low) 

0 2 (1 high, 1 
Medium)  

0 1 (high) 0 

 

Timescales identified for actions in the 2020/21 GDPR report were ambitious, due to a desire to mitigate the risks identified swiftly and comply with historic 
legislation, however given the nature of the issues these were always likely to be unachievable. While timescales have not been met (progress is at an early 
stage in most areas) senior management are now fully aware of the risk this poses to the Council and of the work which needs to be done. Internal Audit 
also notes that an initial action plan and appropriate forum to oversee progress, with senior management, are now in place, giving grounds for optimism 
that necessary enhancements will be implemented at pace. Progress has been made, most notably regarding contracts and data sharing. On the basis that 
clear plans are in place, where actions are at an early stage, overall assurance has been raised to reasonable assurance.  
 

 

 

P
age 31



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 12 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

1 1 .  A u d i t s  i n  D r a f t  t o  d a t e  ( 2 0 t h  S e p t e m b e r  2 0 2 1 )  

 
Audit Directorate  Draft Since Projected Issue Date Revised Comments 

Partnerships Executive 20/9/21 October 2021   

Streetscene 
Enforcement 

Streetscene 19/8/21 September 2021 
  

 
 

1 2 .  A u d i t s  i n  P r o g r e s s  t o  D a t e  ( 2 0 t h  S e p t e m b e r  2 0 2 1 )  

 

 

Audit 
Directorate  Delayed 

Projected Issued 
Date 

Revised Issued 
Date Comments 

Homelessness Housing N/A September 2021   

Workforce Planning 
Follow Up 

HR N/A October 2021 
  

IT Access Controls IT N/A October 2021   

Social Media Follow up Executive N/A September 2021   

Governance Follow Up Executive  N/A September 2021   

P
age 32


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting held on 3rd August 2021
	6 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2021
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2021 Appendix

	7 Corporate Risk Register
	7.Copy of Corporate Strategic Risk Register for committee

	8 Audit Progress Report 1st April to 20th September 2021
	Appendix A Internal Audit Progress Report Oct 21 Final


